
Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Posted Per Government Code Section §54954.2 

 

SCOTTS VALLEY 

FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 

7 Erba Lane, Scotts Valley, California 95066 (831) 438-0211 Fax (831) 438-0383 
 

 

Board of Directors 

Agenda 

Wednesday, April 14, 2021, 6:00 P.M.  
 

Complete Board Meeting packets are available upon request and on Scotts Valley Fire District’s website. 

Call (831) 438-0211 or visit www.scottsvalleyfire.com.  
 

Any person who requires a disability related modification or accommodation to participate in a public 

meeting should make such a request to Ron Whittle, Board Secretary, for immediate consideration.  
  

Notice of Teleconferenced Meeting 
 

Pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-25-20 regarding COVID-19, members of the 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District Board of Directors and staff may participate in this meeting 

by teleconference. To reduce the spread of COVID-19, members of the public are encouraged to 

listen to the meeting from their homes via teleconference by calling +1 408-638-0968, enter the 

meeting number when prompted (9018843055) and entering Access Code 119495 or connecting 

to the meeting online via their computer, smart phone or tablet at the following link: 
https://zoom.us/j/9018843055?pwd=SG5zQzI3MTZmVFI5ZStwMWxSdEc4Zz09 
 

 

1.   Call to Order  
 

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence 
 

1.2 Roll Call 
 

2. Public Comment (GC §54954.3) 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons wishing to address the Board on any matter not on the 

agenda. Any matter that requires Board action will be referred to staff for a report and action at a 

subsequent Board meeting. 
 

3. Agenda Amendments (GC §54954.2) – Discussion/Action 
 

4.  Consent Calendar 

(Consent calendar items will be enacted upon by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on items 

unless a Board Member, Staff, or member of the public requests removal of the item for separate action.) 
 

4.1 Approve Regular Board Meeting Minutes of March 10, 2021 
 

4.2 Approve March Payroll 5 and 6 in the amount of: $328,661.20 
 

4.3 Approve March Expenditures in the Amount of: 
 

General Fund:   $120,095.72  

Capital Outlay/Zone A: $    5,536.89 

SCHMIT:   $       114.05 

TOTAL:   $125,746.66  
 

4.4 Adopt Resolution 2021-3: Resolution Requesting Temporary Transfer of Funds 

 

4.5 Approve SCHMIT Equipment Surplus List 
 

http://www.scottsvalleyfire.com/


 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

Board of Directors Meeting for April 14, 2021 

Agenda 
 

Page 2 of 2 

Agenda Posted Per Government Code Section §54954.2 

 

 

5. Discussion Items 

 5.1 Firefighter/Paramedic Eligibility List 
 

 5.2 First Responder Fee 
 

6. Action Items – Discussion/Action  
6.1 Administration of Fire Services Agreement with the Branciforte Fire Protection District  
 

6.2 Approve the Memorandum of Understanding with the Scotts Valley Firefighters I.A.F.F. 

Local 3577 for July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2025  
 

6.3 Approve the following Revised Policies: 
 

Policy # Subject 

400 Organizational Chart 

401  Fire District Divisions 

504 Duty Chief Statement 

603 Acting Company Officers 

1505 Career Development Guide with Attachments 1 & 2 

1703 Battalion Chief Job Description 

1705 Fire Captain Job Description 

1706 Engineer Job Description 

1708 Firefighter Job Description 

1711 Administrative Services Manager Job Description  

1712 Administrative Accounting Specialist Job Description  
  

6.4 Approve Resolution 2021-4 Resolution Requesting Transfer of Funds for Overtime Expenses. 

 

6.5 Approve Resolution 2021-5 Resolution Requesting Transfer of Funds for the Purchase of Self 

Contained Breathing Apparatuses  

 

6.6 Authorize Purchase of Self Contained Breathing Apparatuses not to Exceed $250,000 to be 

Purchased in the 2020/2021 Fiscal Year 

 

7. Board of Directors and Administrative Reports – Information/Discussion 
(No action will be taken on any questions raised by the Board at this time.) 
 

7.1 Board of Directors Report – Directors 
 

7.2 Administrative Report – Chief Officers 
 

7.3  Annual SCHMIT Report – Battalion Chief LoFranco  
 

8.  Correspondence  

 8.1  Santa Clara Parks & Recreation Thank You Letter  
 

9. Request for Future Agenda Items 
  

10.  Adjournment 
 

Next Regularly Scheduled Board Meeting:  

Wednesday, May 12, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 

 



Page 1 of 3 

 

 

SCOTTS VALLEY 
FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 

7 Erba Lane, Scotts Valley, California 95066 (831) 438-0211 Fax (831) 438-0383 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE  

SCOTTS VALLEY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

REGULAR MEETING OF  

March 10, 2021 
 

 

Notice of Teleconferenced Meeting 

Pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-25-20 regarding COVID-19, members of the Scotts Valley Fire 

Protection District Board of Directors and staff participated in this meeting by teleconference. To reduce the spread 

of COVID-19, members of the public were encouraged to listen to the meeting from their homes via teleconference 

by calling +1 408-638-0968, enter the meeting number when prompted (98409743332) and entering Access Code 

379947 or connecting to the meeting online via their computer, smart phone or tablet at the following link: 
https://zoom.us/j/98409743332?pwd=ZmgxYkcwdnNzQWFLRnJlR3M3dk9qZz09 
 

 

1. Call to Order  

1.1  Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence 
 

At 6:01 p.m., President Parker called for the Pledge of Allegiance and a Moment of Silence to follow. 
 

1.2 Roll Call 

   A.       Directors Present:  Directors Campbell, Parker, Patterson and Pisciotta 

 B. Directors Absent:   Director Harmon 

C.       Fire District Staff:  Chief Whittle, Battalion Chiefs LoFranco, McNeil and Stubendorff 

       and Administrative Secretary Walton 
 

2. Public Comment (GC §54954.3)  

None 
 

3. Agenda Amendments (GC §54954.2) – Discussion/Action 

None 

 

4.  Consent Calendar 

4.1 Approve Regular Board Meeting Minutes of February 10, 2021 
 

4.2 Approve February Payroll 3 and 4 in the amount of: $333,695.96 
 

4.3 Approve February Expenditures in the Amount of: 
 

General Fund:  $108,282.73  

SCHMIT:  $           0.00    

TOTAL:  $108,282.73  
 

On motion of Director Pisciotta seconded by Director Campbell to Approve Consent Calendar Items 4.1 

through 4.3 as Stated was approved by the following vote:  
 

AYES:  Campbell, Parker, Patterson and Pisciotta  

   NOES:  None 

ABSENT: Harmon 

ABSTAIN: None 
 

5. Discussion Items  

5.1 LAFCO Comprehensive Study on Fire Protection Services 
  

https://zoom.us/j/98409743332?pwd=ZmgxYkcwdnNzQWFLRnJlR3M3dk9qZz09


 

SCOTTS VALLEY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

Regular Board Meeting March 10, 2021 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 

Chief Whittle reported that the LAFCO Study on Fire Protection Services was included in the Board Packet, which 

is updated every five years. The LAFCO request for information was received in January and needs to be returned 

by April 2, 2021. LAFCO will compile the information and issue a report, which will be available in November.     
 

 5.2 Battalion Chief Promotion Eligibility List  
 

 5.3 Fire Captain Promotion Eligibility List 
 

Chief Whittle reported that the Battalion Chief and Fire Captain Promotion Eligibility Lists were included in the 

Board Packet. The promotional tests were held February 22 and all the candidates did very well. On March 6th, 

Armando Cortes and Roshan Todd were promoted to Captain and Andrew LoFranco and Chris Stubendorff were 

promoted to Battalion Chief.     
 

6. Action Items – Discussion/Action 

6.1 Approve Resolution 2021-2 Resolution Requesting Transfer of Funds for the CERBT and CEPPT 

2020/2021 FY 
       

Chief Whittle stated that Resolution 2021-2 is a transfer of budgeted funds to a Trust Account. The Board approved 

the funds in the 2020/2021 FY budget to make the initial contribution to the Pension Trust and OPEB Trust, which 

are currently budgeted in Other Benefits (55021) and PERS (52015). GASB 84 establishes criteria for identifying 

fiduciary activities and clarifies how these funds should be reported in the financial statements. With this transfer, 

the funds will be moved to Contribution to Trust/Agency Fund (75233) so that contributions to the Trusts can be 

easily identified for budget and audit purposes. In the future, contributions to the Trusts will be budgeted in the 

Contribution to Trust/Agency Fund.     
 

On motion of Director Campbell seconded by Director Pisciotta to Approve Resolution 2021-2 to Transfer 

Funds to the CERBT and CEPPT for the 2020/2021 FY  was approved by the following vote:  
 

AYES:  Campbell, Parker, Patterson and Pisciotta  

   NOES:  None 

ABSENT: Harmon 

ABSTAIN: None 
 

7. Board of Directors and Administrative Reports – Information/Discussion 
(No action will be taken on any questions raised by the Board at this time.) 
 

 

7.1 Board of Directors Report – Directors  

None 
 

7.2 Administrative Report – Chief Officers  
 

The Administrative Report was included in the board packet and Chief Whittle reported the following: 
 

 Captain Ronzano has been upgrading the lights at the Glenwood Station to LED. The crew has done a 

great job and saved a lot of money in labor and energy costs.  

 Captains LoFranco and Petteys and Engineer Post attended a 4-day Flow Path Train-The-Trainer course 

at the Ben Lomond Training Center. They will be conducting training for all three shifts in the future. 

 Battalion Chiefs LoFranco and Stubendorff attended their first staff meeting on Tuesday and it is exciting 

to have so many Scotts Valley raised Chief Officers.  
 

7.3 Administration of Fire Services Agreement with the Branciforte Fire Protection District Report 
 

Chief Whittle stated that he discussed with the Branciforte Fire Protection District (BFPD) Board that the 

SVFPD Board is discussing ending the Administration of Fire Services Agreement. At this time, Central Fire 

is not an option for the next few years until they complete their consolidation. The BFPD Board President has 

contacted Cal Fire but they have not responded yet. Promoting an internal candidate is likely their best option 

but not something the BFPD Board has been interested in the past.      
 

The Board discussed the Fire Services Agreement with the BFPD and possibly giving a date to end the 

agreement.    



 

SCOTTS VALLEY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

Regular Board Meeting March 10, 2021 

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

8.  Correspondence – Information  

8.1 None 
 

9.  Closed Session: Government Code §54957.7 

9.1 Conference with Labor Negotiators: Government Code §54957.6 

 Agency Designated Representatives: Ed Harmon and Joe Parker  

 Employee Organization: All 
  

At 6:38 p.m., President Parker announced that the Board would be going in to Closed Session for the purpose 

listed in Item 9.1. 

 

10.   Open Session 

10.1 Report on Closed Session: Government Code §54957.1 
 

At 7:05 p.m., the Board reconvened to open session and President Parker reported that for Item 9.1 during closed 

session, we tentatively agreed to a proposal with Local 3577, which will be agenized at the next regular Board 

Meeting in April for a vote by the Board.   
 

11. Request for Future Agenda Items 
  

Director Patterson requested an action item to discuss the BFPD Agreement and report from the Chief with options 

to make a recommendation for the future. 

 

Chief Whittle stated that the Local 3577 MOU will also be added to the April Agenda.   
 

12. Adjournment  

 

The meeting was adjourned at 7:07 p.m.  

 

 
ATTEST _____________________________    ______________________________ 

  Joe Parker       Ron Whittle   

  Board President       Board Secretary 



















M:\data\RESOLUTIONS\RES2021-3.doc 

SCOTTS VALLEY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 

RESOLUTION NO.   2021-3 
 

RESOLUTION REQUESTING   

TEMPORARY TRANSFER OF FUNDS 
 

 WHEREAS the Scotts Valley Fire Protection District is in need of financial assistance during the 

period of July 1, 2021 to April 30, 2022; and 
 

 WHEREAS the Board of Supervisors of the County of Santa Cruz has, declared its approval of and 

intention to provide needed tax anticipation funds pursuant to Constitution Article XVI Section 6; 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the Board of Directors of the 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District hereby determine and declare that: 
 

The sum of $2,500,000.00 is needed in anticipation of tax revenues for the operation and 

maintenance of said district through April 30, 2022. 
 

Said sum of $2,500,000.00 requested does not exceed 85% of the taxes accruing before any other 

obligations are met from such taxes. 
 

The district agrees to repay this loan by April 30, 2022, together with interest at the current rate 

per annum received on similar types of investments by the county as determined by the County 

Treasurer.  
 

The Secretary of this Board shall forward three certified copies of this Resolution to the Auditor-

Controller of the County of Santa Cruz so that the request may be signed and presented to the 

Board of Supervisors for approval. 
 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE Board of Directors of the Scotts Valley Fire Protection 

District, County of Santa Cruz, State of California, this 14th day of April, 2021 by the following vote: 
 

 AYES      NOES ABSENT    ABSTAIN 

Director Robert Campbell 

Director Edward Harmon  

Director Joseph Parker 

Director Russ Patterson 

Director Daron Pisciotta 
 

_____________________________                       ATTEST:  ______________________________ 

Joe Parker, Board President                                                      Ron Whittle, Board Secretary 

 

REVIEWED AND RECOMMENDED: 

    
 

___________________________                               ___________________________ 

Auditor-Controller                                                     Treasurer-Tax Collector 
 

___________________________    ___________________________ 

Date        Date 
 

DISTRIBUTED:      

County Auditor      

County Treasurer 

County Counsel  



















































 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

 

 

 

POLICY: 401 SUBJECT: Fire District Divisions 
 

DATE 

APPROVED: 

 

04/14/2021 

 

 
 

 

BOARD 

PRESIDENT: 

  

FIRE CHIEF: 
 

  

 

 

 

POLICY No. 401                                                                                                   Page 1 of 2                                                                                                                 

 

Policy 401:  Fire District Divisions 

 

The Scotts Valley Fire Protection District is organized into five divisions:  

 

 Administration 

 Fire Prevention 

 Support Services 

 Training and Safety 

 EMS and Information Technology 

 

The Administration Division is responsible for all district operations, promulgating 

necessary orders, policies, rules and regulations to carry out the policy of the fire district and 

to accomplish the mission.   It enforces those laws of the State of California for which the 

fire chief is responsible.  It is responsible for finance, preparation, submission and 

administration of the budget.  It administers the mutual aid and other fire protection 

agreements and contracts to which the fire district is signatory. It is responsible for 

preparation and maintenance of reports, records and correspondence. Personnel, human 

resources, and fire corps volunteers are part of the Administration Division.  The 

Administration Division is under the management of the fire chief. 

 

The Fire Prevention Division is responsible for fire safety education, enforcement of the 

District’s Fire Code, statutes of the State of California, and the federal government, and all 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District and Santa Cruz County laws and ordinances pertaining 

to fire, hazardous materials and panic hazards. It develops procedures for routine and special 

inspection; issues permits; keeps records and statistics and cooperates with related city, 

county, state and federal departments and agencies.  It investigates suspicious fires in 

cooperation with law enforcement and it coordinates the fire prevention activities of the 

suppression staff with approval of the fire chief. Personnel of this division perform such fire 

suppression duties as the fire chief may direct. The Fire Prevention Division is under the 

management of the fire chief, with support from the administrative captain and shift 

battalion chiefs.  



 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

 

 

 

 

POLICY: 

 

401 

 

SUBJECT: 
 

Fire District Divisions 

 

POLICY No. 401                                                                                                   Page 2 of 2                                                                                                                 

 

 

 

The Support Services Division performs fire fighting, salvage, and rescue duties. The 

management and maintenance of apparatus, equipment and facilities and purchasing of 

equipment, design and construction of facilities, and other logistical functions are the 

responsibility of this division. The Support Services Division is under the management of a 

shift battalion chief. 

 

 

The Training and Safety Division is responsible for all aspects of personnel training for all 

District personnel.  This division is also responsible for the District’s health and safety 

program.  The training program includes education and training of incumbent personnel, 

meeting training and safety mandates, career development training and ongoing safety 

programs.  The Training and Safety Division is also responsible for preparing promotional 

tests and examination processes.  This division will coordinate closely with other allied 

agencies to assure consistency of training methods and procedures. The Training and Safety 

Division is under the management of a shift battalion chief. 

 

 

The Emergency Medical Services (EMS) and Information Technology Division is 

responsible for all aspects of the District’s delivery of emergency medical services. This 

includes tracking and supervision of all certifications and licenses. This Division is also 

responsible for information technology including the District’s computer systems, pre-fire 

planning data collection and input, radio communications, mapping GIS, 9-1-1 contact, and 

operational representative to the dispatch center. The EMS and Information Technology 

Division is under the management of a shift battalion chief. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

 

 

 

POLICY: 504 SUBJECT: Duty Chief Statement 

 
DATE APPROVED:    4-14-2021   
 

BOARD PRESIDENT: 

  

FIRE CHIEF: 
 

    

 

 

 

POLICY No. 504                                                                                                      Page 1 of 2                                                                                                                 

 

 

 

Policy 504:  Duty Chief Duty Statement 

 

The duty chief is a chief officer or acting chief officer who is available for 24-hour emergency 

response.   Normally, the three assigned chiefs will rotate duty coverage on a 24-hour shift basis.  

This policy addresses the parameters for duty chief coverage. 

 

Availability  

 

1. The duty chief will be available for incident responses on an initial attack basis for the 

duration of the coverage period.  The typical coverage will be from within the District, 

but a 15-minute radius will be acceptable. 

 

2. The duty chief will respond to all structure and wildland fires, any large-scale incident, 

and upon request of the company officer.  He/she will also be available to offer 

guidance to company officers. 

 

3. Communication and coordination with the company officers will be an integral part of 

duty chief coverage. 

 

4. Under unique circumstances due to unusual episodes of long term coverage with 

limited relief, the fire chief may approve coverage from home by a qualified duty chief. 

 

5. Response out of the District based on a mutual aid request is allowed as long as there is 

an assurance of duty chief coverage for the District. 

 

Time Off for Chief Officers 

 

1. Vacation time will be accrued as per the applicable employment agreement.  Requests 

for vacation must be approved by the fire chief. 

 

2. When a chief officer takes vacation time, it will be with the understanding that he/she 

will not have responsibility for duty coverage. 

 

3. Coordination of time off will be essential to assure that there is adequate duty chief officer 

coverage with some level of backup to be determined as acceptable by the fire chief. 



 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

 

 

 

 

POLICY: 

 

504 

 

SUBJECT: 
 

Duty Chief Duty Statement 

 

POLICY No. 504                                                                                                      Page 2 of 2                                                                                                                 

 

 

Selection of a duty chief to cover for absences will be done consistent with policies and 

procedures regarding call back. 

 

Incident responses by chief officers outside of normal work hours are compensated at time and 

one half consistent with the current labor agreement. 

   

Acting Battalion Chief-Out of Class 

 

Captains who meet the minimum requirements may be an Acting Battalion Chief: 

 

 Completion of a minimum of two years’ experience as a Captain (Line/Shift) with 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District. 

 Meet educational requirements up to and including Captain Step 3 specified in 

Policy 1705 

 Successful completion of a District administered test. 

 Successful completion of 5 or more shifts of performance in the role of a 

Battalion Chief under the oversight of the shift battalion. 

 Completed and signed Acting Battalion Chief Task Book 

 

Selection of acting duty chiefs will be made by the fire chief.  

Compensation 

 

Acting duty chiefs who are filling in during periods not normally assigned to cover vacation, 

sick leave, industrial disability leave or other absences will be compensated using the following 

formula: 

 

 (Battalion Chief 1 hourly rate minus Captain 3 hourly rate = differential paid.) 

 

 

The acting battalion chief trainee will only do ride-along hours while on duty, performed 

without additional compensation, and is voluntary.  

 

 



 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

 

 

 

POLICY: 603 SUBJECT: Acting Company Officers 
 

DATE APPROVED:     4-14-2021 

 

 

 

 
 

 

BOARD CHAIR: 

  

FIRE CHIEF: 
 

  

 

 

 

POLICY No. 603                                                                                                      Page 1 of 2                                                                                                                 

 

Policy 603:  Acting Company Officers      

  

1. Acting Company Officers shall have the authority of, and be required to enforce, the 

regulations and orders of the position they are filling, and will be charged with the 

knowledge, and will be accountable for, the execution of the duties of such rank. 

 

2. Acting Company Officers shall be accorded all the privileges pertaining to the office in 

which they are acting and shall be obeyed and respected accordingly. 

 

3. No Acting Company Officer shall annul or alter the standing orders of the regular 

officer without the specific authority of a superior officer. 

 

4. Regularly appointed officers shall have precedence of command over those acting in 

the same rank. 

 

5.  Any ride-along hours while on duty, shall be performed without additional 

compensation and is voluntary. 

 

Acting Company Officers 

 

Engineers who meet the minimum requirements may be an Acting Company Officer: 

 

 Completion of a minimum of 60 months of service with Scotts Valley Fire 

Protection District 

 Meet all educational requirements up to and including Engineer Step 4 specified 

in Policy 1705 

 Completed and signed Acting Company Officer Position Task Book 

 

Selection of acting company officer will be made by the fire chief.  

Compensation 

 

Acting company officers who are filling in during periods not normally assigned to cover 

vacation, sick leave, industrial disability leave or other absences will be compensated using the 

following formula: 

 



 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

 

 

 

 

POLICY: 

 

603 

 

SUBJECT: 
 

Acting Company Officers 

 

POLICY No. 1705                                                                                                    Page 2 of 2                                                                                                                 

 

 (Company Officer hourly rate minus Engineer Step 4 hourly rate = differential paid.) 

 

 

The acting company officer trainee will only do ride-along hours while on duty, performed 

without additional compensation, and is voluntary. 

 

 

 

 

 

 









 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

 

 

 

POLICY: 1703 SUBJECT: Battalion Chief Job Description 
 

DATE APPROVED: 

 

4/14/21 

 

 
 

 

BOARD PRESIDENT: 

  

FIRE CHIEF: 
 

  

 

 

 

POLICY No. 1703                                                                                                   Page 1 of 2                                                                                                                 

 

BATTALION CHIEF 

 

Job Description 

 

REPORTS TO: Fire Chief 

 

SUPERVISES: Fire Captains 

 

BASIC FUNCTION: 

The Battalion Chief is an administrative staff position that performs supervisory and command 

functions as assigned.  Under the supervision and direction of the Fire Chief, the Battalion Chief 

is to provide responsible and technical assistance to the Fire Chief.  He/she will manage various 

district divisions and programs and ensure that the mission and goals of the District are carried 

out.  He/she shall exercise and promote effective communication and leadership skills.  The 

Battalion Chief shall perform administrative, suppression, prevention and related duties as 

assigned.  The Battalion Chief shall direct emergency scene activities, supervise and develop 

company officers and evaluate performance of employees.  The Battalion Chief will ensure that 

personnel are trained in the proper fire service techniques and operations and oversee the 

maintenance of the Fire District facilities and apparatus.  The Battalion Chief will create staff 

reports and written communications and manage such collateral duties as: hazardous materials 

response, fire suppression operations, training, disaster planning, mutual aid, emergency medical 

services, facilities, fire prevention, fire investigations, apparatus, public education, 

communications and other related duties as may be required. 

 

The Battalion Chief will provide Duty Chief coverage on a shift basis.  A 15-minute response time 

criteria is required. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

 

 

 

 

POLICY: 

 

1703 

 

SUBJECT: 
 

Battalion Chief Job Description 

 

POLICY No. 1703                                                                                                    Page 2 of 2                                                                                                                 

 

BATTALION CHIEF Step 1 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

 Shall have worked a minimum of one year as a Captain Step 3 with the Scotts Valley Fire 

Protection District and met all requirements for Captain Step 3.  

 Must be an Acting Battalion Chief 

 Shall have completed and have on record with the Training Officer the following courses as 

outlined in the Career Development Guide: One Chief Fire Officer 3 series class, AH-330 

(Strike Team/Task Force Leader All-Hazards), and ICS 400 (Advanced Incident Command 

System). 

 Must possess and maintain a Class C California Driver License or better. 

   

BATTALION CHIEF Step 2 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

 Shall have worked a minimum of one year as a Battalion Chief Step 1 with the Scotts Valley 

Fire Protection District and met all requirements for Battalion Chief Step 1. 

 Shall have completed and have on record with the Training Officer the following courses as 

outlined in the Career Development Guide: One additional Chief Fire Officer 3 series class, 

S-339AR (Division/Group Supervisor All-Risk), and S-404 Safety Officer. 

 Shall have satisfactorily met probationary obligations through periodic employee evaluations 

as outlined in the Policies and Procedures prior to moving to Battalion Chief Step 2. 

 

BATTALION CHIEF Step 3 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

 Shall have worked a minimum of one year as a Battalion Chief Step 2 with the Scotts Valley 

Fire Protection District and met all requirements for Battalion Chief Step 2. 

 Shall have completed and have on record with the Training Officer the following courses as 

outlined in the Career Development Guide: Two additional Chief Fire Officer 3 series 

classes. 

 

DESIREABLE QUALIFICATIONS: 

 College degree in Fire Protection technology, Public Administration or related field. 



 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

 

 

 

POLICY: 1705 SUBJECT: Fire Captain Job Description 
 

DATE APPROVED: 

 

4-14-2021 

 

 
 

 

BOARD PRESIDENT: 

  

FIRE CHIEF: 
 

  

 

 

 

POLICY No. 1705                                                                                                   Page 1 of 2                                                                                                                 

 

FIRE CAPTAIN    

 

Job Description 

 

REPORTS TO: Chief Officer 

 

SUPERVISES: Firefighters and Engineers 

 

BASIC FUNCTION: 

The Fire Captain performs supervisory and technical firefighting and fire prevention duties on 

an assigned shift, evaluates performance of employees, and directs the activities of a fire 

company at the station, at the scene of an emergency and during other company activities.  

Will also perform related duties as required within any assigned Division.   

 

Primary duties will be to: 

 Take command of assigned fire stations, organize work schedules, assign personnel, and 

review job performances;    

 Supervise the maintenance and use of all fire apparatus and other emergency equipment;    

 Drill firefighters in latest firefighting techniques, including pre-plan fire extinguishment of 

key structures and areas in the Fire District;   

 Fill out reports on all incidents;  

 Lead and direct firefighters at fire sites or under emergency conditions;  

 Dispatch fire apparatus;  

 Supervise periodic maintenance and performance test of equipment;  

 Supervise personnel in fire prevention company inspections within key areas of the Fire 

District;  

 Conduct Fire Safety Equipment and other district training programs.   

 Perform related work as required. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

 

 

 

 

POLICY: 

 

1705 

 

SUBJECT: 
 

Fire Captain Job Description 

 

POLICY No. 1705                                                                                                    Page 2 of 2                                                                                                                 

 

CAPTAIN Step 1 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

 Shall have worked a minimum of one year as an Engineer Step 4 (72 months service) with 

the Scotts Valley Fire Protection District and met all requirements for Engineer Step 4. 

 Must be a department Acting Company Officer 

 Shall have completed and have on record with the Training Officer the following courses 

as outlined in the Career Development Guide: Two Company Officer 2 series classes and 

S-231 (Engine Boss).  

 Must possess and maintain a valid Class B California Drivers License. 

 Maintain a current EMT certification or better. 

 

CAPTAIN Step 2 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

 Shall have worked a minimum of one year as a Captain Step 1 with the Scotts Valley Fire 

Protection District and met all the requirements for Captain Step 1.  

 Shall have satisfactorily met probationary obligations through periodic employee 

evaluations as outlined in the Policies and Procedures prior to moving to Captain Step 2. 

 Shall have completed and have on record with the Training Officer, the following courses 

as outlined in the Career Development Guide: Two additional Company Officer 2 series 

classes and S-219 (Firing Operations). 

 

CAPTAIN Step 3 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

 Shall have worked a minimum of one year as a Captain Step 2 with the Scotts Valley Fire 

Protection District and meet all the requirements for Captain Step 2. 

 Shall have completed and have on record with the Training Officer, the following courses 

as outlined in the Career Development Guide: One additional Company Officer 2 series 

class and S-270 (Basic Air Operations). 
 

DESIREABLE QUALIFICATIONS: 

 College degree in Fire Protection technology or related field. 

 



 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

 

 

 

POLICY: 1706 SUBJECT: Engineer Job Description 
 

DATE APPROVED: 
 

4-14-2021 

 

 
 

 

BOARD PRESIDENT: 
  

FIRE CHIEF: 
 

  

 

 

 

POLICY No. 1706                                                                                                   Page 1 of 2                                                                                                                 

 

ENGINEER   

Job Description 

 

REPORTS TO: Company Officer 

 

SUPERVISES: Non-Supervisory Position 

 

BASIC FUNCTION: 

The Engineer shall, under the supervision of the officer in charge, be responsible for the condition 

and operation of apparatus to which they are assigned, and shall be held accountable for its 

readiness for service.   

 

Primary duties will be to: 

 Drive and operate apparatus in a manner consistent with safety and due regard for the welfare 

of the public and the district;   

 Acquaint themselves with the topography, physical conditions, and other matters affecting 

response within the District's boundaries;   

 Familiarize themselves with practices and procedures relative to water supply, fire streams, 

pump, motor, and other operations that will enable them to efficiently perform their duties; 

Respond to fire alarms, aid in the suppression of fires, operate pumper trucks, aerial trucks and 

other special emergency apparatus;   

 Use fire hose, forcible entry tools (axes, bars, door openers, pike poles) and self-contained 

breathing apparatus;   

 Administer first-aid, operate resuscitator and rescue equipment.  Perform salvage operations 

with use of tarps, brooms, mops, shovels, etc;   

 Maintain all fire equipment, apparatus, as well as fire stations, and station quarters.  Issue fire 

permits;   

 Assist and participate in fire prevention and public safety training programs, and departmental 

training programs;   

 Study fire department rules and regulations, fire hazards, and fire fighting techniques; Perform 

other agency services such as voter registration; 

 Participate in the pre-fire planning by inspecting and drawing floor plans of commercial and 

industrial buildings; 

 May be required to respond to fire calls during non-duty hours;   



 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

 

 

 

 

POLICY: 

 

1706 

 

SUBJECT: 
 

Engineer Job Description 

 

POLICY No. 1706                                                                                                    Page 2 of 2                                                                                                                 

 

 Perform related work as required. 

 Under the supervision of the Company Officer, the firefighter will be a mentor and help with 

training the volunteers and PCF’s 

 

ENGINEER Step 1 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

 Shall have worked a minimum of one year as a Firefighter Step 2 (24 months service) with the 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District and met all requirements for Firefighter steps. 

 Shall have successfully passed the SCO Driver Operator 24 month manipulative and 

written exam within the 24 month probationary period.  

 Must possess and maintain a valid Class B California Driver License. 

 Maintain a current EMT certification or better. 

 

ENGINEER Step 2 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

 Shall have worked a minimum of one year as an Engineer Step 1 (36 months service) with the 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District and have met all the requirements for Engineer Step 1. 

 Shall successfully complete the SCO Engineer Program: Special Operations, Pump Test, and 

Mechanics.  

 Shall have completed and have on record with the Training Officer, the following courses as 

outlined in the Career Development Guide: One approved 40 hour Rescue class (Ex. Trench 
Rescue, Rescue Systems 1, or Confined Space Rescue Tech.) ,and S-215 (Fire Operations in 

Wildland/Urban Interface). 

 

ENGINEER Step 3 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

 Shall have worked a minimum of one year as an Engineer Step 2 (48 months service) with the 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District and have met all the requirements for Engineer Step 2. 

 Shall completed and have on record with the Training Officer the following courses as 

outlined in the Career Development Guide: Instructor Methodology, IS-800B National 

Response Framework (FEMA-Online), ICS-300 (Intermediate ICS) and S-212 (Wildland 

Chainsaws).  

 

ENGINEER Step 4 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

 Shall have worked a minimum of one year as an Engineer Step 3 (60 months service) with the 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District and have met all requirements for Engineer Step 3. 

 Shall completed and have on record with the Training Officer the following courses as 

outlined in the Career Development Guide: Hazardous Materials On-Scene Commander, S-

290 (Intermediate Wildland Fire Behavior).   

 



 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

 

 

 

POLICY: 1708 SBUJECT: Firefighter Job Description 
 

DATE APPROVED:    
 

4-14-2021 

 

 
 

 

BOARD PRESIDENT: 
  

FIRE CHIEF: 
 

  

 

 

 

POLICY No. 1708                                                                                                   Page 1 of 2                                                                                                                 

 

FIREFIGHTER       

Job Description 

 

REPORTS TO: Company Officer     

 

SUPERVISES: Non-Supervisory Position 

 

BASIC FUNCTION: 

Under supervision, a Firefighter: 

 Protects life and property from fire and destruction by natural or manmade causes; 

 Conducts rescue and salvage operations; 

 Trains for and participates in varied firefighting and rescuing duties, fire protection 

inspection, equipment operation and maintenance;   

 Responds to alarms of fire or other emergencies with an engine, ladder or squad 

company; Lays and connects hoses, holds nozzles and directs water, raises and climbs 

ladders;  

 Uses chemical extinguishers, bars, hooks, etc; 

 Ventilates burning buildings, removes persons from danger, administers emergency 

medical care, operates resuscitation equipment;  

 Performs salvage operations, participates in drills, inspects fire protection systems, 

conducts fire prevention inspections, and participates in public safety and department 

training programs;  

 Enforces codes and ordinances;  

 Performs general maintenance and clean-up work in upkeep of apparatus, equipment 

furnishings and structures of the Fire District;  

 Performs related work as required. 

 Under the supervision of the Company Officer, the firefighter will be a mentor and help 

with training the volunteers and PCF’s 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

 

 

 

 

POLICY: 

 

1708 

 

SUBJECT: 
 

Firefighter Job Description 

 

POLICY No. 1708                                                                                                    Page 2 of 2                                                                                                                 

 

FIREFIGHTER 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

 

  The following courses will be on file with the Training Officer prior to date of hire: 

 1.  Auto Extrication (F-STEP)       

 2.  Fire Fighter Survival (F-STEP)       

 3.  Confined Space Rescue Awareness (CSTI)     

 4.  Hazardous Materials First Responder Operational (CSTI)   

 5.  I-100 Introduction to Incident Command System (FEMA-Online)  

 6.  IS-200b ICS for Single Resource and Initial Action Incidents (FEMA-Online) 

 7.  I-700.a NIMS National Response Plan (FEMA-Online)    

 8.  S-130 Firefighter Training (NWCG)  

      9.  S-131 Firefighter Training (NWCG)* 

 10. S-133 Look Up, Look Down, Look Around (NWCG)*    

 11. S-134 Lookouts, Communication, Escape Routes, & Safety Zones. (NWCG)* 

 12. S-190 Introduction to Wildland Fire Behavior (NWCG) not online  

 13. L-180 Human Factors in the Wildland Fire Service (NWCG)*      

            14.  Low Angle Rope Rescue (F-STEP)   

 Must possess and maintain a valid Class C California Drivers License. 

 Maintain a current EMT certification or better. 

*Or Cal Fire equivalent 

 
FIREFIGHTER Step 2 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

 Shall have worked a minimum of one year as a Firefighter (12 months service) with the 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District and met all requirements for Firefighter. 

 Shall successfully pass an SCO Firefighter I exam within the first year of probation. 

 Shall have successfully met all probationary obligations through periodic employee 

evaluations as outlined in Policies and Procedures. 

 Must maintain a valid Class C or B California Driver’s License. 

 Maintain a current EMT certification or better. 



 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

 

 

 

POLICY: 1711 SUBJECT: Administrative Services 

Manager Job Description 
DATE APPROVED: 4/15/2021   
 

BOARD PRESIDENT: 

  

FIRE CHIEF: 
 

    

 

 

 

POLICY No. 1711                                                                                                    Page 1 of 2                                                                                                                 

 

 

 ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES MANAGER 
 

Job Description 

 

REPORTS TO: Fire Chief  
 

SUPERVISES: Administrative Staff 

 

BASIC FUNCTION: 

Under direction of the Fire Chief, the Administrative Services Manager directs the operations and 

services of the Administrative Office while performing complex and essential functions of Human 

Resources, Finance, Health Benefits Officer and Recording Board Secretary. The Administrative 

Services Manager is a Confidential Employee.  
 

PRIMARY DUTIES: 

Administrative Functions:  

 Maintains, revises and updates SVFPD confidential personnel files, payroll files, general office 

files, policies, standard operating procedures and office manuals.  

 Prepares public record requests.  

 Provides backup coverage for general office support and Fire Prevention.  
 

Human Resources/Payroll: 

 Performs human resource functions including pre-employment screening, new hire paperwork, 

CalPERS retirement, workers compensation and DMV Pull Program.  

 Administers and maintains enrollment in SVFPD benefit plans including medical, dental, 

vision, life insurance, employee assistance program and COBRA coverage.  

 Maintains premium payments for active employees, retiree health insurance and COBRA. 

 Prepare and maintain SVFPD wage information for promotions, salary increases, specialty pay, 

separations and other personnel actions.  

 Implements payroll changes required by Memorandum of Understanding, CalPERS and labor law.   

 Provides backup coverage for payroll processing. 

 Supervises Administrative Staff and conducts performance evaluations.  
 

Finance: 

 Performs complex accounting and budget work related to the preparation and maintenance of 

financial records. 

 Prepares year-end financial documents and acts as the liaison to the SVFPD auditor to ensure 

smooth financial audits.  



 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

 

 

 

POLICY: 1711 SUBJECT: Administrative Services 

Manager Job Description  

 

POLICY No. 1711                                                                                                    Page 2 of 2                                                                                                                 

 

 Manages the Cal Card program.  

 Invoicing for Strike Team response and the County SCHMIT Program.  

 Manages budget revenue and expenditures with the County. 

 Provides backup coverage for processing accounts payable and deposits. 
 

Recording Board Secretary:  

 Compiles information and prepares the Board of Directors agenda and packet to include 

resolutions, ordinances, supporting documents and correspondence for Board Meetings.  

 Attends meetings of the Board of Directors and transcribes minutes. 

 Act as the filing officer for the Statement of Economic Interests Form 700.  
 

KNOWLEDGE: 

 Proficient in Microsoft Office and G Suite.  

 Practices and procedures of budgeting, management and research techniques. 

 Practices and procedures related to processing accounting transactions, payroll and benefits.   

 Modern office practices, methods and equipment.   

 English use, grammar, spelling, vocabulary and punctuation.  

 Creating and/or formatting documents and forms. 
 

ABILITIES: 

 Accurately type 50 words per minute.  

 Work cooperatively with staff, the public and other organizations.  

 Work under tight deadlines and manage conflicting priorities.  

 Apply good judgement in a variety of challenging situations.  

 Exercise flexibility, creativity and sensitivity in response to changing needs.  

 Communicate clearly and effectively.  

 Properly interpret and make decisions in accordance with laws, regulations and SVFPD policies 

and procedures.  
 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

 Citizen of the United States or a permanent resident alien who is eligible for citizenship. 

 High School Graduate or Tested Equivalent. 

 Valid California Driver’s License and must be insurable by the SVFPD Insurance Carrier. 

 Any combination of training and experience which would provide the required knowledge and 

abilities. A typical way to obtain the required knowledge and abilities would be five (5) years of 

experience in a full time administrative position with increasing responsibilities. Related education 

may be substituted for experience or experience may be substituted for education.   
 

DESIRABLE QUALIFICATIONS: 

 Bachelor’s Degree in finance, accounting, business administration or close related field. 

 Supervisor and/or Management experience.   

 

 

 



 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

 

 

 

POLICY: 1712 SUBJECT: Administrative Accounting 

Specialist Job Description  

DATE APPROVED: 4/15/2021   

 

BOARD PRESIDENT: 

  

FIRE CHIEF: 

 

    

 

 

 

POLICY No. 1712                                                                                                    Page 1 of 2                                                                                                                 

 

 

 ADMINISTRATIVE ACCOUNTING SPECIALIST 

 

Job Description 

 

REPORTS TO:  Administrative Services Manager 

 

SUPERVISES:  Non-Supervisory Position 

 

BASIC FUNCTIONS: 

Under general supervision, the Administrative Accounting Specialist performs a variety of 

administrative functions for the Scotts Valley Fire Protection District (SVFPD). The Administrative 

Accounting Specialist is a confidential employee and performs complex accounting functions related 

to processing financial transactions and payroll.  

   

PRIMARY DUTIES: 

Administrative Functions:  

 General office support processing mail, answering phones and assisting members of the public.  

 Provides Fire Prevention administrative support including logging plans, processing payments 

and scheduling appointments.  

 Maintains the SVFPD Website, required legal postings and social media. 

 Provides backup coverage for Recording Board Secretary. 

 

Accounting Functions:  

Accounts Payable: 

 Processes accounts payable including reviewing invoices for accuracy, managing purchase 

orders, coding for proper budget accounts and verifying appropriate authorization.   

 Reconciles and processes monthly Cal Card expenditures. 

 Processes invoices and deposits through the County system.  

 Maintains expenditure and revenue spreadsheets to reconcile with the County system.    

 Purchases supplies and maintains fixed asset inventory. 

 

Payroll: 

 Processes payroll including downloading payroll data, reviewing for accuracy and preparing 

payroll sheets for data entry in the County payroll system. 

 Maintains payroll reports and records including personnel action forms, deductions, 

withholdings and processes retroactive payments.  



 

Scotts Valley Fire Protection District 

 

 

 

POLICY: 1712 SUBJECT: Administrative Accounting 

Specialist  

 

POLICY No. 1712                                                                                                    Page 2 of 2                                                                                                                 

 

 Audits CalPERS calculations processed by the County to ensure correct and timely payment.  

 

KNOWLEDGE: 

 Proficient in Microsoft Office and G Suite.  

 Basic accounting practices, procedures and techniques. 

 Modern office practices, methods and equipment.   

 English use, grammar, spelling, vocabulary and punctuation.  

 Creating and/or formatting documents and forms. 

 

ABILITIES: 

 Accurately type 50 words per minute.  

 Work cooperatively with staff, the public and other organizations.  

 Work under tight deadlines and manage conflicting priorities.  

 Apply good judgement in a variety of challenging situations.  

 Exercise flexibility, creativity and sensitivity in response to changing needs.  

 Communicate clearly and effectively.  

 Work independently with minimal supervision.  

 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

 Citizen of the United States or a permanent resident alien who is eligible for citizenship. 

 High School Graduate or Tested Equivalent. 

 Valid California Driver’s License and must be insurable by the SVFPD Insurance Carrier.  

 Any combination of training and experience which would provide the required knowledge 

and abilities. A typical way to obtain the required knowledge and abilities would be one (1) 

year of experience in a full time administrative position. Related education may be 

substituted for experience or experience may be substituted for education.   

 

DESIRABLE QUALIFICATIONS: 

 Bachelor’s Degree in finance, accounting, business administration or close related field. 

 Experience in accounts payable and payroll.  
 

 



M:\data\RESOLUTIONS\RES2021-4.doc 

SCOTTS VALLEY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

 

RESOLUTION NO.   2021-4 

 

RESOLUTION REQUESTING TRANSFER OF FUNDS 
 

 WHEREAS, the Scotts Valley Fire Protection District is in need of a transfer of funds 

from the Fund Balance- Undesignated Account (98695) to the General Fund Overtime Account 

(51005); and 

 

 WHEREAS, such funds are set forth in the 2020/2021 FY budget; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the Santa Cruz 

County Auditor-Controller transfers funds in the amount of $400,000 as follows: 

 

Funds hereby transferred from: 

 

GL Key GL Object Account Name Amount 

    

685010 98695 Fund Balance – Undesignated  $400,000 

 

And that such funds be and are hereby transferred to: 

 

GL Key GL Object Account Name Amount 

    

685010 51005 Overtime $400,000 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Scotts Valley Fire 

Protection District, County of Santa Cruz, State of California, this 14th day of April 2021, by 

the following vote: 

 

AYE      NAY ABSENT    ABSTAIN 
Director Robert Campbell 

Director Edward Harmon  

Director Joseph Parker 

Director Russ Patterson 

Director Daron Pisciotta   

 

  

      

_______________________   ATTEST: ________________________    

Joe Parker            Ron Whittle, Board Secretary 

Board President  

 

 
 

 

 

cc: County Auditor/Controller 
 



M:\data\RESOLUTIONS\RES2021-5.doc 

SCOTTS VALLEY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

 

RESOLUTION NO.   2021-5 

 

RESOLUTION REQUESTING TRANSFER OF FUNDS 
 

 WHEREAS, the Scotts Valley Fire Protection District is in need of a transfer of funds 

from the Capital Outlay/Zone A Fund Balance- Undesignated Account (98695) to the Capital 

Outlay/Zone A Equipment Account (86204); and 

 

 WHEREAS, such funds are set forth in the 2020/2021 FY budget; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the Santa Cruz 

County Auditor-Controller transfers funds in the amount of $230,000 as follows: 

 

Funds hereby transferred from: 

 

GL Key GL Object Account Name Amount 

    

685030 98695 Fund Balance – Undesignated  $230,000 

 

And that such funds be and are hereby transferred to: 

 

GL Key GL Object Account Name Amount 

    

685030 86204 Equipment $230,000 

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Scotts Valley Fire 

Protection District, County of Santa Cruz, State of California, this 14th day of April 2021, by 

the following vote: 

 

AYE      NAY ABSENT    ABSTAIN 
Director Robert Campbell 

Director Edward Harmon  

Director Joseph Parker 

Director Russ Patterson 

Director Daron Pisciotta   

 

 

_______________________   ATTEST: ________________________    

Joe Parker            Ron Whittle, Board Secretary 

Board President  
 

 

cc: County Auditor/Controller 
 
 
























